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Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)  

Request for Programme Outlines (RfP) for  

Argentina, Costa Rica and Ukraine 

 

Processes 

Question 1: What comprises the first and second stage of the IKI selection procedure? 

IKI selection is based on a two-stage procedure.  

In the first stage, coherent programme outlines need to be submitted based on the corresponding funding 

information. If programme outlines are promising, BMU will ask for the submission of a formal pro-

gramme proposal which will be prepared during an appraisal mission (start of second stage). 

In the second stage, the joint programme coordinator will receive a written invitation to submit a formal 

request for funding for an appraisal mission (start of second stage). Joint programme coordinators then 

have up to six months to complete the appraisal mission and on that basis must submit a thoroughly 

prepared programme proposal. After an in-depth evaluation and a positive decision on the proposal by 

BMU the programme can begin. 

Question 2:   When can a programme outline be submitted? 

BMU selects programmes for IKI funding based on open calls for ideas that are announced regularly. Coun-

try specific as well as thematic selection procedures are launched for the selection of larger programmes 

that are implemented jointly with other organisations.  

In 2019, IKI will publish several RfPs for submitting country specific programme outlines. Please refer to 

the IKI website (link) for the deadline for submission of programme outlines for the current IKI selection 

procedure. The next thematic selection procedure is already scheduled. The dates for the submission of 

thematic programme outlines has not been determined yet.  

Question 3:   In which form is the programme outline to be submitted? 

The programme outline needs to be submitted exclusively via the electronic online form provided (link). 

Hard copies and programme outlines submitted in a different format (excel, jpeg, word, pdf) will not be 

considered in the selection process. 

Question 4:   Does a programme outline need to be signed? 

Since the programme outline is submitted electronically, it does not require a signature. 

Question 5:   Can the programme outline be evaluated by BMU before submission? 

For reasons of equal treatment and fair competition, an evaluation of the programme outline before sub-

mission is not allowed. Inquiries about the status of the assessment of programme outlines will not be 

answered while selection is in progress.  

https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/project-funding/information-for-applicants/#c6404
https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/iki-call/login-applicant
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Question 6:  What is an appraisal mission?  

The appraisal mission is mandatory and serves as a preliminary audit to explore the programme set-up 

jointly with the partners, supply valid data and information, in order to provide the basis for a detailed 

programme planning process and substantiated programme structure and content.  

Question 7: Should the expenditures for the appraisal mission be included in the programme outline?  

Details (scope, activities, roles of the partners, expenditures, etc.) of an appraisal mission shall be indi-
cated in the online form under 7.1. “Appraisal mission” and the relevant budget field. Together, the ex-
penditures needed for an appraisal mission (7.1. “Appraisal mission”) and the intended budget for the 
programme (6. “Budget in EUR”) shall not exceed the stated amounts in the respective bilateral request 
for programme outlines (RfP).  

 
Question 8: Are several implementing agencies asked to carry out an appraisal mission and to develop complete 

programme proposals, of which one is then selected at the end? Or does one have to assume that only 
one will be prioritised after the first selection stage? 

Following the first selection stage BMU/IKI selects one promising programme outline (ARG, CRI) and two 

promising programme outlines (UKR), which will be prepared during an appraisal mission. This selection 

does not prejudice the decision for funding.  

Question 9:  When does IKI anticipate funds to be available for the current selection period? 

BMU/IKI expects that only funds for the appraisal missions can be made available at the earliest in the 

end of 2019. The financing of the programme itself depends on thorough evaluation and preparation of 

the programme and its respective contracts so therefore will most likely start at the earliest in the second 

half of 2020.  

Applicants 

Question 10:  Who can submit a programme outline? 

IKI supports activities by implementing agencies, NGOs, consultancies, universities, research institutions, 

based in Germany and abroad, by international and multilateral organisations and institutions, e.g. devel-

opment banks and United Nations bodies and programmes. Individuals and their programmes are not 

supported by the IKI. IKI in particular encourages the inclusion of implementing institutions from partner 

countries itself. 

The programme needs to be implemented in a consortium of more than two organisations (minimum), 

including significant participation of national implementing institutions in the framework of a cooperation 

agreement (see fact sheet Consortium Agreement on the IKI website (link) with one organisation acting 

as joint programme coordinator). This joint programme coordinator is the sole recipient of the approval 

notification and the sole contract partner of BMU, receiving direct payments through BMU; no grants 

funds are paid directly to other partners in the joint programme. The joint programme coordinator is 

responsible for forwarding the grant to the partners as agreed within the consortia of the programme.  

The joint programme coordinator and its partners in the joint programme need to have comprehensive 

relevant expertise and experience in the target region. The joint programme coordinator must display this 

expertise and, as a rule, demonstrate that it has continuously implemented cooperation programmes in 

https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/project-funding/information-for-applicants/#c6404
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the relevant thematic area jointly with partners in the region for at least five years. The partners must 

demonstrate their expertise in accordance with their role in the programme. 

The joint programme coordinator must be able to undertake qualified planning and cost-effective imple-

mentation of programmes and to monitor and render account for them, if necessary in collaboration with 

the partners or subcontractors directly involved. This includes ensuring compliance with relevant environ-

mental and social safeguards in accordance with IKI’s safeguard policy. Specific monitoring of the pro-

grammes is expected. Programme planning and monitoring should be based on the results framework 

developed by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD). 

The joint programme coordinator and the consortia partners must provide competent staff for the tech-

nical and administrative programme implementation. Average annual BMU funding volume should not 

exceed the grant recipient’s average annual turnover over the last three business years. When the grant 

is forwarded, the joint programme coordinator is responsible for ensuring that the programme partners 

(forwarding recipients) also comply with this requirement in respect of their funding share. The average 

annual funding volume derives from the planned total BMU funding volume and the planned duration of 

the programme as stated in the outline.  

Activities by organisations/institutions based in Germany and abroad are supported via grants. Activities 

conducted by German federal implementing agencies are commissioned pursuant to the terms and con-

ditions applicable to these agencies. With regard to funding for institutions based abroad, the sections of 

this funding information apply correspondingly. 

Question 11: The average annual grant from BMU should not exceed the average annual turnover of the joint pro-
gramme coordinator over the last three years. Does this apply solely to the joint programme coordina-
tor’s share, or does it apply to the overall grant? 

The joint programme coordinator is the grantee and acts as the initial recipient of the overall grant. The 
requirement for the joint programme coordinator (cf. Question 30) therefore applies to the overall grant. 

Question 12: Is it possible to display the required five years of experience in the country through the overall consor-
tium (all programme partners, or one of them) instead of through the joint programme coordinator 
exclusively? 

 No, the joint programme coordinator must provide evidence of this expertise and, as a rule, demonstrate 
that it has continuously implemented international cooperation programmes in the thematic area jointly 
with partners in the country for at least five years.  

Question 13: Can an NGO based in the USA act as joint coordinator for a programme in the recipient country? Or 
must a national partner take on this role?  

The joint programme coordinator does not have to be headquartered in the recipient country. However, 
it must be ensured that the it has expertise in that country. 

Question 14:  Can several organisations/institutions take on the role of a joint programme coordinator? 

No, only one implementing organisation can assume the role of the joint programme coordinator. 
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Joint Programmes 

Question 15:  What is a joint programme? 

In general, a joint programme involves several organisations that work as fully-fledged partners. The prin-

ciples of cooperation will be laid out in a cooperation agreement signed by all the implementing partners 

and the joint programme coordinator. The cooperation agreement should not be submitted until the sec-

ond stage of the application procedure (cf. Section 5 ‘Selection procedure’ of the funding information). 

Please refer to the ‘Consortium Agreement’ fact sheet on the IKI website for more information (link). The 

joint programme must ensure significant participation of national implementing agencies (cf. Question 10 

and 34).  

Question 16:  What is a cooperation agreement? When is the cooperation agreement to be submitted? 

The successful implementation of a programme calls for trustful collaboration between cooperation part-

ners. The partners shall therefore work on the basis of an internal agreement that sets the framework for 

the cooperation and constitutes the rights and obligations of the partners. Moreover, the partners ap-

point a joint programme coordinator who carries out the internal organisation and external representa-

tion of the joint programme.  

The cooperation agreement needs to be negotiated and finalised before the decision on funding pro-

grammes is made. Please refer to the ‘Consortium Agreement’ fact sheet on the IKI website for more 

information (link).  

Question 17: How binding, in the view of BMU, are cooperation arrangements at the point of submission of a pro-
gramme outline? After outline selection, can cooperation partners leave and/or join the initiative? 

After the selection, further implementing partners can join if, for example, an appraisal mission indicates 
that further local partners/experts are required to implement the programme. Normally, no cooperation 
partners will leave the initiative after selection, unless this is mutually agreed by the partners and only if 
this does not change the character and core elements of the programme outline. 

Question 18:  Does a cooperation agreement require a joint programme coordinator from a given partner country?  
Is a consortium in the framework of a cooperation agreement acceptable that include a German uni-
versity as the joint programme coordinator besides a national research institute and a national private 
company as implementing partners? It is essential that the consortium include also national political 
partners? 

The joint programme coordinator does not have to be from a partner country. 

Yes, a German university can be the joint programme coordinator and a national research institute and a 

national private company can act as implementing partners. The national political partner cannot be part 

of the consortium, because political partners cannot be recipient of the funding (cf. Question 22). 

Question 19:  What is the relationship between the joint programme coordinator and the implementing organisations 
towards BMU? 

The joint programme coordinator is the sole recipient of the approval notification or the sole contract 

partner of BMU. As the sole recipient, the joint programme coordinator receives direct payments through 

BMU; no grants funds are paid directly to other implementing partners in the joint programme. The joint 

programme coordinator is responsible for forwarding the grant to the implementing partners in the joint 

https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/project-funding/information-for-applicants/
https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/project-funding/information-for-applicants/


 

 

As of 13 December 2018  - 5 - 

programme. Please refer to the ‘Consortium Agreement’ fact sheet on the IKI website for more infor-

mation (link). 

Question 20: What does cooperation at the same level mean?  

Cooperation at the same level means that the partners in a joint programme take decisions on the com-
mon implementation in partnership and joining their respective comparative advantages and compe-
tences to ensure the successful and efficient implementation of an IKI programme. The implementing 
partners should act in consensus (incl. external visibility of all partners with simultaneous presentation of 
the programme as financed by the BMU). 

Question 21: Will BMU/IKI provide support for matchmaking with compatible partners, recommending partnerships 
with like-minded organisations?  

BMU/IKI will not provide any support for networking among potential partners. 

Question 22: Is it essential to be in a consortium with a German institution?   

There is no requirement for the involvement of German institutions is in a joint programme. 

Question 23: Can an organisation be involved in several consortia? 

Yes, an organisation can be part of more than one consortium with different roles and approaches. 

Question 24:  Are there institutions that are excluded from the participation in a consortium? 

IKI supports activities by implementing agencies, NGOs, consultancies, universities, research institutions, 

based in Germany and abroad, by international and multilateral organisations and institutions, e.g. devel-

opment banks and United Nations bodies and programmes. IKI in particular encourages implementing 

institutions as described above from the partner countries itself (cf. Question 10). 

Individuals and their programmes are not supported by the IKI. Furthermore, governments are not eligible 

to receive funding directly. Therefore, governments are not eligible as implementing contractual IKI part-

ners in the consortium. Nevertheless, the consortia of course must take the recipient government struc-

tures into account when developing the programme outline.  

Question 25: What are the criteria and conditions for entities to be considered national actors that are expected to  
    receive at least 50% of the programme resources?  

The main rationale of the country-specific programmes is to provide substantial support to partner coun-

tries in the process of NDC-implementation as well as national implementation of the Strategic Plan 2011 

- 2020 of the CBD. IKI seeks to work towards more cooperation and collaboration and towards more ca-

pacity in partner countries. A prime intent of the country-specific programmes is therefore to significantly 

enhance capacity building and support civil society. To accomplish this goal, BMU/IKI expects that national 

implementing partners receive at least 50% of the programme funding. In this context, national imple-

menting partners in the BMU/IKI definition are institutions that are registered as national legal entities in 

the respective country. They should be included in the outline as consortium coordinator, consortium 

partners or subcontractors. The programme outline needs to illustrate the respective proportion of funds 

allocated to national partners. 

Please note, however, that the allocation of 50% of the programme funds to national partners is consid-

ered as optimum, not as a prerequisite. 50% national share will be awarded the full score in the evaluation 

of outlines, programmes including a lower proportion can also apply but will in this category of evaluation 

receive a lower score. A higher proportion than 50% does not constitute a competitive ad-vantage. 

https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/project-funding/information-for-applicants/#c6404
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Question 26:  The RfP states that organisations from the private sector are eligible as implementing actor. Do we 
assume correctly that subcontracting to the private sector will also be counted for reaching the 50% 
quota?   

Yes, please refer to the answer to question 25 for more details. 

Partnerships 

Question 27: How will the interest of the political partner and its willingness to cooperate be secured? 

The political support of the partnering Government for the programme will be secured by BMU bilaterally. 

No action is required by implementing partners.  

Question 28: Do all partnerships and subcontractors have to be listed in the programme outline? 

Political partners have to be named in the programme outline, and contact persons / focal points within 

the partner country’s Government (political partner) have to be provided.  

All implementing partners of a consortium have to be stated in the programme outline. The procurement 

of services, which includes the delivery of goods, construction works or the provision of services, shall 

take place after the approval of a programme. Should subcontractors already be determined before sub-

mission of the programme proposal, they have to be listed in the programme proposal and their selection 

has to be reasonably justified.  

For more information on the differentiation between partners/forms of partnerships please read the in-

structions provided in the programme outline on the IKI online platform (link). 

Please also describe the organisational structure of the programme consortium in Annex 2 of the pro-

gramme outline (online version) and upload a relevant organisation chart.  

Budget 

Question 29:  In which currency is the application requested? 

All calculations and amounts need to be stated in Euro (EUR). 

Question 30:  Are there any guidelines regarding the maximum amount of funding?  

A minimum or maximum grant amount does not exist. In general, please refer to the stated amounts in 

the respective bilateral request for programme outlines (RfP).  

The planned average annual BMU funding volume should not exceed the joint programme coordinator’s 

average annual turnover of the last three financial years. The average annual funding volume follows from 

the planned BMU total funding volume and the planned programme duration.  

∅ 𝑎𝑛𝑛𝑢𝑎𝑙 𝑓𝑢𝑛𝑑𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝑣𝑜𝑙𝑢𝑚𝑒 =
𝑡𝑜𝑡𝑎𝑙 𝐵𝑀𝑈 𝑓𝑢𝑛𝑑𝑖𝑛𝑔

𝑌𝑒𝑎𝑟𝑠(𝑝𝑟𝑜𝑗𝑒𝑐𝑡 𝑑𝑢𝑟𝑎𝑡𝑖𝑜𝑛)
 

https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/iki-call/login-applicant
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The joint programme coordinator is responsible, within the framework of the transfer of the sub-grant, 

for ensuring that this requirement is also complied with by the implementing organisations (forwarding 

recipients) in respect of their funding share. 

Question 31:  What are own funds, third-party grants and external funding? Do they have to be stated in the budget? 

Own funds are a financial contribution which is supplied directly from the joint programme coordinator´s 

funds and is not sourced from other donors, third parties or implementing partners. 

IKI programmes should not be funded entirely by BMU funding, but include an adequate proportion of 

co-funding. An appropriate financial participation of the joint programme coordinator (‘own funds’) 

and/or the mobilisation of additional co-funding are a condition for approval of a grant. The extent to 

which the own funds must be available can only be decided in individual cases. The appropriate amount 

depends in particular on the financial strength of the applicant. A fixed minimum level for own funds does 

not exist. The funding of the programme purpose is primarily the responsibility of the applicant, who 

therefore has to do everything he can to achieve the necessary funds. A full financing mode from BMU is 

therefore only possible in exceptional cases. 

In addition to own funds, third-party grants refer exclusively to sums made available for the programme 

from other public donors to finance the eligible total expenditure. Other public institutions include insti-

tutions of the federal and state governments, institutions and foundations of public law, as well as asso-

ciations thereof, irrespective of the legal form, and all EU institutions. A written confirmation by the donor 

concerning the provision of the third-party grants is to be submitted after the completion of the first stage. 

In addition, external funding can be included. External funding is funding provided by non-public third 

parties with an interest in the programme to finance the total expenditures of the programme that are 

eligible for support (e.g. private donors). A written confirmation of this financial contribution is manda-

tory. 

Own funds from implementing partners are counted in the formal programme proposal as third-party 

grants or external funding. A written confirmation is not necessary in this case. 

In principle, all revenue related to the programme purpose (in particular, the grants and/or external fund-

ing) and the own funds of the joint programme coordinator are to be used as a means for all eligible 

expenditures related to the programme purpose. 

Question 32:  Can participation also take the form of in-kind contributions? 

In-kind contributions usually refer to goods or services provided free of charge by a third party. In-kind 

contributions never involve an actual transfer of financial resources to the joint programme coordinator 

or the implementing partners. Therefore, in-kind contributions do not involve any expenditures. Conse-

quently, in-kind contributions are not eligible and must never appear in the budget of the IKI programme 

as an expenditure. It is not practical to calculate the financial value of such contributions and to assess 

whether it has effectively been provided. If in-kind contributions are intended, BMU shall be informed 

and the planned contributions need to be displayed and described under 5.4 of the programme proposal 

form (second stage).  
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Question 33:  Do smaller projects, which do not reach the announced country-specific budget or larger projects, ex-

ceeding the country-specific budget have a chance to benefit from IKI funding? 

No, within the framework of each bilateral funding information, projects that do not meet the criteria laid 

out for joint programmes are not eligible. 

Question 34:  How is the budget distributed between the joint programme coordinator and the implementing part-
ners? Are there any guiding principles? 

There are no specifications. However, a balanced and comprehensible relationship should be reflected. It 

is in the special interest of BMU that the joint programme organisations cooperate at the same level. This 

should be reflected in the budget. IKI expects a strong involvement of national/local partners in the con-

sortium, receiving a minimum of 50% of the programme’s budget.   

Question 35: Is there a fixed limit to the IKI administrative overheads?  

A fixed limit is not defined. However, in case the administrative overheads seem excessive you may be 
asked to deliver a detailed breakdown for further assessment. 

Question 36: Must implementing partners also provide evidence to BMU of an own contribution? When and where 
(outline or programme proposal)?  

Appropriate own financial contributions and implementing partner inputs, and the mobilisation of addi-
tional funding to finance the eligible expenditure, are generally a precondition for approval of a grant. 
When evaluating the suitability of a programme, the level of own funds and third-party grants is one of 
the selection criteria. This rule also applies to the implementing partners in a joint programme. The budg-
eted own funds and third-party grants must already be stated in the outline. Own funds of the implement-
ing partners have to be declared under 6.2. (‘Own Funds provided by submitter/implementing partners’).  

Question 37: What happens if a programme has accessed another source of funding? Would the award be withheld 
because of a breach of this clause?   

Appropriate own financial contributions are generally a precondition for approval of a grant (cf. Question 
36). If additional financing (own funds and/or third-party grants) can be secured for the programme, BMU 
views this positively. Depending upon the type and level of the new funding, the BMU grant would be 
reduced accordingly. This, however, must be assessed on a case-by-case basis; it is not possible to gener-
alise in advance. 

Question 38: Does an English-language version of the general collateral clauses for grants to support programmes 
(Allgemeine Nebenbestimmungen für Zuwendungen zur Projektförderung, ANBest-P) exist? Will there 
be simplifications to Point 3 (VOB/A and VOL/A – Award of contracts)? If not, will BMU continue to 
provide no legal advice on this? Are the expenditures of legal advice/tender consultants for award pro-
cedures eligible for funding and should these already be included in the Concept Note budget?  

ANBest-P is not available in English. No simplifications to the procurement rules are envisaged.  
 
As before, legal advice services do not count as eligible expenditures and therefore should not be in-
cluded in the programme outline. 

Question 39: Can you please clarify what is meant by ‘expenditures’ and ‘costs’? Do I interpret the terms correctly as 
meaning that the funds applied for cannot be used to cover the costs (or indeed commercial fees) of 
the staff working time of implementing partners?   

For the 2018 selection procedure, only expenditure-based applications are eligible. The funding infor-
mation states (cf. Annex 2 ‘Type, extent and amount of the funding’): ‘Support can be granted for all 
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expenditures necessary and in line with the principles of sound financial management to achieve the pro-
gramme goal, insofar as it is not possible to achieve this goal without this support. There is no provision 
for grants on a cost-basis’.   

Moreover, expenditures are not cost-covering. In order to avoid misunderstandings in the application 
process, ‘expenditure’ and ‘cost’ should therefore never be used synonymously in the IKI context. 

Question 40:  To what extent are private-sector organisations in a position to take part in implementation within a 
consortium?   

Private companies can take part within a consortium in the implementation of a joint programme as long 
as they have no commercial interest in implementation and no economic advantage arises from the re-
ceipt of grants. Evidence must be furnished if required. 

Question 41: Has the deadline for the expenditure of funds and the procurement rules been changed? Is it possible 
to apply for an extension of the expenditure deadlines?  

The deadline for the expenditure of requested funds has not been changed. Requested funds have to be 
spent within six weeks, as laid down in the grant agreement. It is not possible to extend the deadline.  

The procurement rules have not been changed. The rules are laid down in the Grant Agreement (please 
see also these link for more information on procurement rules).  

Question 42:  Is there maximum or minimum grant amount? 

A minimum or maximum grant amount does not exist. In general, please refer to the stated amounts in 

the respective bilateral request for programme outlines (RfP):  

• Argentina: one integrated bilateral programme with a funding volume up to max. EUR 15 Mio 

• Costa Rica: one integrated programme with a funding volume of at least EUR 11 Mio and up 

to max. EUR 12.5 Mio 

• Ukraine: two integrated programmes with a funding volume up to max. EUR 35 Mio 

If a programme outline fails to meet these country specific corridors, it will diminish the probability of 

being selected. 

Question 43: In the FAQ document, it emphasises that own funds are a condition for approval of a grant, and that the 
level of own funds and third-party grants is one of the selection criteria. Please could you provide some 
further information on the level of co-funding that is typically required to make a programme proposal 
competitive? 

There are no fixed criteria set and there is no fixed minimum for own funds or external funding. However, 

it is expected to bring in external funding and own funds according to the capacity of the consortia.  

Depending on the layout of the programme and the constitution of the implementing organisations, these 

amounts are expected in different levels.  

As a rule: External funding and own funds show real commitment and are highly appreciated but always 

depend on individual assessment.  

Question 44: Even if in-kind contributions do not count as an “expenditure”, can they be considered matching “own 
funds” or provide any other support in the programme outline? When do co-financing or other contri-
butions need to be in place in order to be counted.  

In-kind contributions are welcome and show commitment of the consortia but cannot be included in the 

budget. They can be provided and described as programme support, but they do not count as own funds 

https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/fileadmin/Dokumente/2017/170614_Guidelines_for_international_applicants.PDF
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or external funding. If in-kind contributions are intended, the planned contributions need to be displayed 

and described in the programme proposal form (second stage). 

All own funds and external funding need to be in place before approval of the programme.  

Question 45:  If an institution that is both political partner and implementing partner can also receive certain per-
centage of the programme resources? 

It is not foreseen, that an institution is both political partner and implementing partner in an IKI pro-

gramme. In general, it is not possible to finance permanent political partner staff e.g. from partner minis-

tries or subordinate authorities from IKI funds. 

Bilateral cooperation 

Question 46: Is the IKI primarily looking for national programmes or can regional or global programmes be recipients 
in exceptional cases?  

In general, the country specific selection procedure is looking for bilateral programmes. Other (e.g. re-

gional) components may be included in the outline if requested in the respective RfP. For further details 

please also see the FAQ paragraph on priorities and approaches in the partner countries. 

Question 47:  Is it possible to submit outlines for small-scale projects?  

The present funding information focuses on national joint programmes. Small-scale projects will not be 

considered. 

Question 48:  When will the funding information for other priority countries be published? Is it possible to submit 
programme outlines for other countries already now?  

The dates for the submission of programme outlines for other bilateral RfP has not been determined yet. 

Please feel free to check our website (link) on a regular basis, where we will in due time publish all relevant 

information for any selected countries.  

Priorities and Approaches in the Partner Countries 

Question 49: Is it right that the IKI expects programme outlines covering as many of the thematic areas mentioned 
in the RfP as possible? Or is it also possible to submit a more specific programme outline that focus on 
one priority and which could then possibly be combined with the proposals of other consortia in the 
second stage? 

In general, please refer to the stated thematic priorities in the respective bilateral RfP. Only programme 

outlines that meet those criteria could reach the second stage of the procedure. Every programme outline 

has to stand on its own. 

For Argentina, the integrated programme must include at least one of the mentioned thematic priorities, 

integrating a cross-cutting regional approach and as many of the others as feasible. For Costa Rica, the 

programme should cover both thematic priority areas. For Ukraine, the two integrated programmes must 

cover together all following thematic priority areas, while each programme must cover at least two of the 

thematic priority areas.    

https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/project-funding/information-for-applicants/
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Question 50: How are the “thematic priorities” in the RfP (and any other specific topics) prioritised by IKI? 

For Argentina, the programme should be coherent and ideally cover several of the mentioned themes but 

does not necessarily have to include all of them. The thematic priorities are not prioritised among one 

another. For Costa Rica, the two mentioned topics should be addressed in an integrative manner. For 

Ukraine, it is expected that each programme covers at least two of thematic priorities.  

Question 51:  Does IKI prioritise between wide geographic scale and broad implementation or narrower geographic  
    scale (place-specific) and deeper implementation? How would IKI consider a proposed programme  
    based in one or a few specific places, rather than nationwide? 

 IKI does not prioritise among wide geographic scale and broad implementation or narrower geographic 

scale and deeper implementation. Please refer to the respective country specific RfPs for further infor-

mation.  

Question 52:   How is the regional component in the RfP for UKR to be understood? 
 

The main rationale of the IKI’s country-specific programmes is to provide substantial support to partner 
countries through jointly developed bilateral programmes. The programme design may include regional 
components which shall, however, not exceed 10% of the programme funds. Please note that countries 
included in the programme design must meet the criteria for recognition as Official Development Assis-
tance (ODA). 

Miscellaneous 

Question 53: Can programme implementation be planned for less than seven years?  

Yes, this is possible.  

If a shorter duration at the desired level of ambition is possible the programme duration can be less than 

seven years. However, it should be considered that subsequent phases are by no means foreseen and that 

the programme has to sustainably achieve its objectives in the initial period. 

Question 54: Must literature references be cited (e.g. in the section on the initial situation in the country)? 

No literature references are needed in the first stage of the selection process. 

Question 55: To what extent are the Outcome, Outputs and Results sections to be quantified? Are qualitative data 
acceptable for the launch phase?  

Results are to be quantified as far as possible. If quantification is impossible or only possible to a limited 

extent, the reasons for this should be stated. Please make sure to explain the programme’s underlying 

result chain. It has to be clear, how output and outcome are causally linked or how they build on each 

other in order to achieve the programmes desired impacts. 

Question 56:  Under which conditions can carbon credits, generated as a direct result of an IKI-funded programme 
during the implementation period, be used for trading in compliance or voluntary markets? 

For general information on the use of carbon credits please refer to the IKI website (Voluntary compen-
sation). IKI-funded programmes have restrictions when it comes to generating and subsequent trading of 
carbon credits. The generation of carbon credits during the implementation of an IKI-funded programme 
requires to offset the share of credits which are clearly attributed to IKI funding. This applies when the 

https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/news/article/voluntary_compensation/?iki_lang=en&cHash=ad1fdfa088fd796219dbbc40439b8606
https://www.international-climate-initiative.com/en/news/article/voluntary_compensation/?iki_lang=en&cHash=ad1fdfa088fd796219dbbc40439b8606
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implementation and operation of an IKI-funded programme involves actual achievement of mitigation 
within brown or green sector programmes. The comprehensive study on the IKI website provides further 
details on schemes that can be used for REDD+ programmes.  


